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Wong, Phillip (ECN)

From: Aaron Goodman 
Sent: Sunday, February 12, 2017 9:58 AM
To: BRCAC (ECN); Keith Tanner
Subject: TDM Transit Demand Management Topic - @ Monday meeting at Balboa Reservoir 

CAC
Attachments: Academic Senate - In Support of  Alternative and Sustainable Transportation - 

2017-01-17.pdf; SFSU_TDM_program.pdf

Some items of note related to the TDM planning for the BRCAC. (Due to File Size Sending individually for the 
BPR CAC)

Here attached are the SFSU-CSU examples, key to note that few serious infrastructural projects have 
commenced post increase in population at SFSU-CSU.
There have been limited funding or changes in relation to improved parking and transportation systems to Daly 
City BART.  

Similar to CCSF's need to bridge to BPS... more hardlined projects that directly connect are a critical 
component of TDM and should be implemented simultaneously with ride-share, shuttle and other "secondary" 
improvements.  

Aaron Goodman D11 



Published on Academic Senate (http://senate.sfsu.edu)

Home > In Support of Alternative and Sustainable Transportation

Resolution Number: RS11-287
January, 2011

ACADEMIC SENATE RESOLUTION

 

(#RS11 - 287)

 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF

 

ALTERNATIVE AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS,    as part of its strategic vision to become the nation?s preeminent public urban 
university, SF State has prepared a campus master plan that establishes a long term vision 
for the physical environment and identifies improvements to occur through 2020; and

 

WHEREAS,    these improvements focus on accommodating increased enrollment from 
20,000 to 25,000 full-time equivalent students, 711 additional faculty and staff, expanded 
academic initiatives and ways to best serve its many constituents?from students, faculty and 
staff to alumni, friends and neighbors?who contribute to the University?s success; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University has acquired University Park North and University Park South 
with 697 and 262 units respectfully to provide students, faculty, and staff affordable on-
campus housing to reduce commuter transit needs; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University seeks to use alternative, sustainable transportation to support its
growth ; and



 

WHEREAS,    the University has undertaken a comprehensive and recurring analysis of the 
transportation patterns of our community, which has informed the University?s transportation 
planning initiatives; and

 

WHEREAS,     in fall 2009, the University adopted a Transportation Demand Management 
(TDM) plan including strategies, timeline, and monitoring plan in order to minimize the 
transportationimpacts of enrollment growth, specifically AM and PM peak-period vehicle trips 
to the campus; and   

 

WHEREAS,     the University established a Transportation Committee composed of 
representative from campus departments involved with transportation and reporting to the 
Executive Vice President of Administration and Finance and the Vice President of Student 
Affairs and charged with serving as the coordinating body for all transportation matters, 
including implementation of the TDM plan; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University has implemented several TDM programs including ?Zipcar,? pre-
tax commuter cost payroll deductions and the installation of hundreds of new bicycle racks on 
campus since fall 2008; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University has participated in several initiatives, including ?Bike to School 
Day,? ?Bike to Work Day,? and ?PARK(ing) Day? in an effort to raise awareness about the 
benefits of alternative transportation; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University has constructed a Class I bicycle and pedestrian pathway that 
connects Buckingham Way to the Bike Barn, and points south, thereby creating an important 
connection for cyclists and pedestrians; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University as adopted a Climate Action Plan with the goal of reducing the 
University?s greenhouse gas emissions 25 per cent by 2020 and 40 percent by 2030, with 
particular attention to reducing transportation-related emissions; and

 

WHEREAS,    the University operates a shuttle between the campus and the Daly City BART 
Station, which provides a key transit connection and approximately 5,000 rides each day to 
commuters who might otherwise drive to campus; and



 

WHEREAS,    the Academic Senate supports the University?s efforts working with Bay Area 
Rapid Transit (BART) to co-locate the University?s shuttle stop at the Daly City BART Station 
with the 28/28L SFMUNI line bus stop; and therefore be it

 

RESOLVED,  that the Academic Senate applauds the work of the University in seeking to 
minimize its carbon footprint by implementing TDM strategies that encourage the use of public 
transportation to and from campus and make cycling and walking more viable and safer 
options; and be it further

 

RESOLVED,  that the Academic Senate urges the University to continue to expand its efforts 
to further improve access to public transportation to and from the University; and be it further

 

RESOLVED,  that the Academic Senate encourages faculty, staff and student use of public 
transportation, bicycle and pedestrian commuting, and ride sharing.

 

***Approved by the Academic Senate at its meeting on April 26, 2011***
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transportation and will report to the Vice President for Administration and Finance
and the Vice President for Student Affairs.

Ride Match Program – The University will strengthen the existing Ride Match
program by increasing participation rates and provide staff and students with direct
marketing about the Ride Match program.

Marketing and Information – The University will update and revamp its website
and print materials to provide more comprehensive information on alternative
transportation options to and from the University.

Commuter Check Program – The University will promote and expand
participation in its current commuter check program, which offers faculty, staff and
administrators the opportunity to purchase transit passes and van pool transit with
their pre-tax salary.

Car-share – The University will promote and expand campus use of the existing
Zipcar program, which provides self-service access to vehicles by the hour or day.

Guaranteed Ride Home Program – The University will seek funding to implement
a Guaranteed Ride Home Program for those faculty, staff, and administrators who
enroll in an alternative mode program.

Shuttle
Work with BART, SFMTA, and SamTrans to relocate the San Francisco State
University Shuttle stop at Daly City BART.

Improve existing shuttle service.

Seek to replace current van conversion vehicles with low-floor transit buses.

Seek to install GPS for real-time tracking.
Transit

Universal Transit Pass – The University will work with SFMTA, BART, and other
public transportation agencies to evaluate the feasibility and funding options for a
student universal transit pass program.

NextBus Arrival Signage – The University will install NextBus displays at two
campus locations and work with SFMTA to assist with the installation of arrival
signage at transit stops serving campus.

Offer transit ticket purchase options – The University will allow the City to install
and maintain automated ticket vending machines and will continue to provide ticket
sales services for FastPasses and BART tickets.

Work to improve transit stop amenities (lighting, signage, shelter)
Pedestrian/Bicyclists

Bike Barn – The University will evaluate Bike Barn hours and expand them as
needed; install additional bike racks as needed; and explore the feasibility of
relocating the Bike Barn and providing a full range of services at the Bike Barn
facility.
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Bike/Pedestrian Paths – The University will complete the initial phase of the
north-south bicycle and pedestrian path, plan for an expanded bicycle network,
including the final leg of the north-south path and an east-west path; and study the
feasibility of the Valley bridge.

Parking
Parking Fees – The University will explore the feasibility of implementing gradual
parking rate increases for daily and hourly rates.

New Parking Facilities – The University will seek to finance new perimeter
parking structures, as feasible.

Targets
The University will work to achieve the following targets and will use these targets as
benchmarks throughout the monitoring process.

1. If average peak period, peak direction passenger loading exceeds 85 percent of
combined seated and standing load capacity for shuttle service between the
campus and the Daly City BART station, the campus will improve services during
the peak period(s) until this standard is met.

2. If the number of auto trips in the PM peak hour of 4:00 PM to 5:00 PM are greater
than 5 percent over the baseline of 1,173 vehicle trips, the University will conduct
cordon counts annually until such trips fall below the 5 percent above the baseline
for two years in a row.

3. If the number of peak period, 5:00 PM to 6:00 PM, transit trips on the M-line
between the campus and West Portal Station are greater than 5 percent above the
baseline of 134 inbound trips and 273 outbound trips , the University will extend
campus shuttle service between the campus and West Portal Station during the
peak period(s).

Monitoring Plan
San Francisco State University is committed to a comprehensive Monitoring Plan as part
of the TDM Plan and the MOU with the City and County of San Francisco.

The Monitoring Plan requires regular periodic evaluation to determine how the TDM
Program is achieving the goal of reducing the number of drive alone trips to the campus
and minimizing new peak hour trips.

The following measures are recommended to ensure compliance with the Monitoring
Plan:

1. Cordon Surveys – Every three years but no later than the addition of each 1,000
students in enrollment by headcount, the University will conduct a statistically
significant cordon survey of campus commuters during the PM peak hour. This

Baseline established in comprehensive transportation survey conducted April 2008.
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survey will abide by the guidelines set forth in the MOU between the University
and City and County of San Francisco.

a. If the cordon surveys show that the PM peak period auto trips to and from
campus are greater than 5 percent above the baseline, the cordon surveys
will be conducted annually until such trips fall below the 5 percent above
the baseline for two years in a row.

2. TDM Report to SFMTA – The University transportation committee will report
annually to SFMTA regarding the status of the implementation of the TDM
programs described in the TDM Plan.

3. Shuttle Capacity – The University will monitor peak hour utilization of Campus
Shuttle buses.

4. The University will monitor peak period transit use on the M Line
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Chapter 1. Introduction

1.1 Background
In November 2005, San Francisco State University began the planning process to develop a
campus master plan. The creation of the campus master plan evolved over two years, with
participation by both the on-campus community and neighbors. On November 14, 2007, the
Board of Trustees of the California State University approved the final campus master plan and
an increase in San Francisco State University’s enrollment target from 20,000 full-time
equivalent students (FTE) to 25,000 FTE, and certified the Final Environmental Impact Report
(EIR).

The plan establishes a long-term vision for the physical environment and identifies
improvements to occur through the year 2020 that will help the university achieve its strategic
vision to become "the nation's preeminent public urban university." The planning process
involved the City and County of San Francisco, and various City agencies provided feedback on
the Draft EIR regarding the identification and mitigation of off-campus impacts. Under the
“Marina decision” (City of Marina v. Board of Trustees of the California State University, 2006
California Supreme Court), the University is required to negotiate with the City and seek funding
for its “fair share” of mitigation costs to offset the public capital costs of providing City
infrastructure. In order to address the environmental impacts resulting from the Campus master
plan and determine the fair share contribution, the City and University began discussing the
creation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in June 2007.

1.2 Purpose and Need for Plan
In October 2007, the City and County of San Francisco and the San Francisco State University
entered into a MOU. The purpose of the MOU is to address the impact on the City and County
of San Francisco from the implementation of the campus master plan and anticipated increase
in enrollment on the campus.

The MOU identifies a number of measures that the University must take. The creation of this
Transportation Demand Management plan addresses requirement 1 in Section B of the MOU.
Requirement 1, Section B, states that the University must implement a TDM program to
minimize the daily AM and PM peak period vehicle trips to the campus. The objective of the
program is to ensure that adequate measures are undertaken and maintained to minimize the
transportation impacts of the increase in enrolled students and number of employees as set
forth in the campus master plan.

This plan serves to meet the MOU requirement of a TDM Plan and related monitoring plan.
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Bicycle Access
Varied bicycle conditions exist within the 3 to 5 mile biking radius of campus, with discontinuities
in the bicycle network highlighting potential improvements for bicycle access to campus. The
main bicycle corridor providing bicycle access to San Francisco State University from the north
is 20th Avenue including bicycle connections through Golden Gate Park and Stern Grove.
Bicycle routes providing access between San Francisco State University and places to the
south of campus include a variety of streets through Parkmerced, as well as Bicycle Route 75,
which accommodates bicycles in wide curb lanes along sections of Beverly Street, 19th Avenue
and St. Charles Avenue to Daly City BART station.

To the east of campus, the main bicycle access route is along Holloway Avenue and portions of
Ocean Avenue near Balboa Park station. Along this route a dedicated on-street bike lane
provides excellent bicycle access along Holloway Avenue between Font Boulevard and 19th

Avenue. The bicycles lanes do not continue east of 19th Avenue along Holloway, but the street
is a fairly low-speed residential street. To the west of campus, bicycle access is provided along
a dedicated off-street route along the perimeter of Lake Merced. This route provides excellent
off-street service and is well used by recreational walkers and cyclists, though it has poor
connectivity to surrounding streets and to the San Francisco State University campus. The
campus master plan identifies opportunities to improve bicycle routes through and around the
edges of campus. The ongoing San Francisco Bike Plan Update proposes new bicycle lanes in
the short term on Holloway from 19th Avenue to Junipero Serra with other bikeway
improvements continuing east into the Mission District. In fall 2009, San Francisco State
University completed construction of a bike path from 20th and Buckingham south down the
hillside to South State Drive.

Bicycle Facilities
Currently there are a number of bicycle racks located around the perimeter of the campus core
and on-campus housing. Racks are provided at Mary Park Hall, Mary Ward Hall, A.S. Children’s
Center, The Village, Student Services, Fine Arts, HSS, and the Science building for a total
capacity of approximately 60 bikes. The Bike Barn has capacity for 250 bikes.

Transit
The San Francisco Muni provides a number of routes that directly serve the San Francisco
State University campus. Routes servicing the campus include the M, 17, 18, 28, 28 Limited
(28L) and 29. The Daly City BART station is the closest BART stop to the campus and a
campus-sponsored shuttle provides access from the station to the University. In addition to
BART and Muni services, SamTrans provides service to the campus via Daly City and Colma
via Route 122. The route originates at the South San Francisco BART Station and moves north
via Serramonte Shopping Center and Seton Medical Center to the Colma BART Station. From
there, it stops at Westlake Shopping Center and heads north on Lake Merced Boulevard past
the western edge of San Francisco State University to terminate at Stonestown Shopping
Center.

Muni and BART are the most heavily utilized transit systems with 36 percent of San Francisco
State University commuters riding Muni and 21 percent riding BART for some portion of their
journey to campus.
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Figure 9: Parking On and Near Campus
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On-Campus Parking
Currently 2,911 parking spaces—excluding residential parking at the Villages, UPS, and UPN—
are supplied on campus including 73 parking spaces reserved for people with disabilities. On-
campus parking is divided among 6 separate parking lots. Lots 20 and 25 are available to
students and visitors with the exception of Level 4l Orange to 4n Orange, which is restricted to
staff and faculty between 7 AM and 5 PM Monday – Friday. Lot 20 is open 24 hours per day
while lot 25 is only available from 7 AM to 10 PM. Both lots charge $1 per hour with a $5
maximum per day for parking.

Lots 1, 2, 6, and 19 (roof level of Lot 20) are restricted to use by faculty and staff with valid
campus parking permits from 7 AM to 5 PM Monday – Friday. Students with disabilities and
visitors are allowed to park in any disabled parking space in any lot.

Demand for on-campus parking is such that, on average, a maximum overall campus parking
occupancy of 80 percent is reached between 11 AM and 2 PM. During certain periods of the
day, particularly early afternoon, some small parking lots experience 100 percent occupancy.

Off-Campus and Student Housing Parking
Off-campus parking is also available, though much of this parking is subject to two-hour parking
restrictions imposed by the City of San Francisco’s residential parking permit program. Free,
unrestricted on-street parking exists along both sides of 19th Avenue on the east side of
campus, along Junipero Serra Boulevard and along sections of Winston Drive and Lake Merced
Boulevard. There is also metered on-street parking on Tapia and Holloway Avenue, some of
which is reserved for motorcycle parking.

Designated parking is available to on-campus residential students. At University Park North,
parking is provided either in carports or on street. In total, there are 631 carport spaces and 106
reserved on-street parking spaces amounting to 737 spaces. Residents pay $50 a month for a
parking space in addition to their housing costs. University Park South follows a similar
configuration, with a total of 231 carport spaces for an extra $50 a month. The City of San
Francisco issues Parking Permit E to those living in Parkmerced to park on street without time
restriction for $60 a year. The Village parking lot houses 80 official spaces, with approximately
seven additional unofficial spaces where vehicles can park in circulation areas. A space in the
garage costs $100 a month. Additional vehicles may be accommodated in tandem spaces if
valet service is provided. As the lot is currently operated by an attendant, valet parking may be
a possibility. All on-campus residential students may purchase a $225 semester permit to park
in Lot 25.

2.3 Transportation Demand Management
Current TDM efforts include the San Francisco State University shuttle to Daly City BART, the
attended Bike Barn facility, San Francisco State University Ride Match Program, commuter
check program, Zipcar program, and information on alternative modes of transport provided by
the San Francisco State University transportation website. A description of the programs
currently offered is given below:
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San Francisco State University Shuttle Buses
For those who commute by BART and the various bus lines serving the station, the Department
of Parking and Transportation provides a free shuttle service to and from the Daly City BART
station, stopping at 19 h and Holloway on campus, with one shuttle making a loop through
campus stopping at Creative Arts, the student housing on Font, the Library Annex, University
Park North, 19th Avenue, and Daly City BART. The direct shuttle operates 7:00 AM to 10:30 PM,
Monday through Thursday and 7:00 AM to 7:15 PM on Friday, and the loop shuttle operates
7:00 AM to 5:30 PM, Monday through Friday. The shuttle is well utilized, with approximately 17
percent of survey respondents taking the shuttle for the last leg of their commute to campus.

On a daily basis, the shuttle service has 2,800 to 3,200 rides with an average of three runs per
hour per shuttle, and a total of 45 to 50 runs per shuttle per day. For 3,000 rides per day this
translates to 66,000 rides per month or 594,000 rides per year (shuttle operates nine months
out of the year).

Currently, during the peak hours of 8:00 AM to 9:30 AM and 3:00 PM to 6:30 PM, San Francisco
State University shuttles are over capacity, which is defined as 28 persons seated and 10
persons standing. During these time periods, demand is so high that there is a queue of riders
waiting in line for a shuttle. In general, over the whole day, 75 percent of the time the shuttles
are at 100 percent capacity.

Information on the shuttle is provided on the San Francisco State University Parking and
Transportation website. Under the “Shuttle Buses” link, stop locations and hours of operation
are given.

San Francisco State University, the City and BART are currently working to relocate the San
Francisco State University shuttle stop at Daly City Station to be adjacent to the Muni 28/28L
stop. Since the shuttle, 28 and 28L lines are all free to San Francisco State University affiliates
between the station and campus, co-locating the stops will allow passengers to choose
whichever line arrives first.

San Francisco State University Ride Match Program
The San Francisco State University Ride Match Program matches faculty, staff and students
with others in their area to carpool to campus. If the Transportation Department is unable to
create the match, it will work with other Bay Area agencies to find one. Currently, 111
participants are enrolled in the program. A number of marketing methods are used to inform
students, staff and faculty about the Ride Match program. Marketing methods used include:
Parking and Transportation Department website, campus bulletins, notices on shuttles, flyers in
on-campus housing, and a notice in the new hires information packet. At the end of each
semester persons who have enrolled in the program are notified by the University and are
asked if they would like to remain in the database or be removed.

Commuter Check Program
The University Parking and Transportation Program and Human Resources, Safety & Risk
Management have partnered together to administer a commuter check program that enables
faculty, staff and administrators to purchase transit passes with their pre-tax salary. Via payroll
deduction, up to $230 monthly of pre-tax salary can be used for public transportation or vanpool
expenses. Participants enroll online through Commuter Check Direct, a nationwide service, and
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may choose to have their transit passes mailed directly to them or receive commuter checks
which they can then redeem at the Student Center for transit passes.

Bike Barn and Information
As bike parking is not permitted within the central core of the campus, the Department of
Parking and Transportation provides an indoor bike parking area in Lot 6 under the gym. The
Bike Barn provides secure bicycle parking and all day attendants at no cost to the bicycle rider.
The facility is open Monday through Thursday from 7:30 AM to 10:00 PM and Friday from 7:30
AM to 5:00 PM. The Bike Barn is closed on weekends and when school is not in session. Some
additional bicycle parking is available at a number of bicycle racks scattered around the
campus. The San Francisco State University Parking and Transportation website provides a text
summary of the bike routes in the Bay Area as well as bike laws and safety tips.

Transit Information
The San Francisco State University Parking and Transportation website offers information on
how to get to campus by bus and shuttle, providing links to the transit providers and 511.org, the
Bay Area transportation website. This information is provided on the “Directions to Campus”
page. The San Francisco State University Parking and Transportation website is user-friendly,
with icons and text to help the user navigate the links.

Zipcar
The University has partnered with Zipcar to provide the campus community with self-service
access to vehicles by the hour or day at discounted rates, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365
days a year. Reserved parking for the Zipcars is provided at the South State Drive entrance to
the parking garage.
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Chapter 3. TDM Program and
Implementation Schedule

The following chapter lays out a comprehensive TDM program that builds on and expands the
TDM measures already in use by the University to adequately minimize and mitigate the
transportation impacts the University’s planned growth will have.

San Francisco State University currently supports a number of TDM programs, including ride
matching, bike barn, and shuttle services, as described in Chapter 2. However there is an
opportunity to further strengthen and expand these programs to reduce a greater percentage of
drive-alone trips. This program encompasses financial incentives such as subsidized transit
passes and a Guaranteed Ride Home program to give employees the security to carpool or ride
transit; and information and marketing efforts. While these programs can stand alone, they will
make a more significant impact when used together to create a package of options for
University affiliates.

The mitigation measures and programs are organized by time of implementation: one to two
years, three to four years, and five or more years. Figure 10 at the end of this chapter provides
a comprehensive look at the timeline for all the measures.

3.1 Years One and Two
The following section describes the measures that will be undertaken during the first two years
of the implementation of the TDM plan. The measures described in this section are changes
that can be undertaken right away.

Establish a Transportation Committee
Strategy: The University will create a Transportation Committee.

Description: The University will create a Transportation Committee, composed of
representatives from campus departments involved with transportation and reporting to the Vice
President for Administration and Finance and the Vice President for Student Affairs. The
committee, co-chaired by the Associate Director of Community Relations and the Campus
Planner, will serve as the central coordinating body for all transportation matters, including
developing, implementing, evaluating, and managing the University’s TDM programs. The
committee will oversee coordination and marketing of mobility programs for university affiliates
as well as direct marketing to as many staff and students as possible to increase the potential
for each of the programs. The committee will also oversee the Monitoring Plan (Chapter 4). The
Associate Director of Community Relations / committee co-chair will serve as the University’s
liaison with the SFMTA.
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Ride Match Program
Strategy: The University will strengthen its existing Ride Match program by, 1) Increasing
participation rates and 2) Providing all staff and students with direct marketing about the Ride
Match program.

Description: Ridesharing is one of the most common and cost-effective alternative modes of
transportation and one which commuters can adopt part-time. There are numerous benefits to
ridesharing. Ridesharing can reduce peak-period vehicle trips and increase commuters’ travel
choices. It reduces congestion, road and parking facility costs and pollution emissions.
Ridesharing tends to have the lowest cost per passenger-mile of any motorized mode of
transportation, since it makes use of a vehicle seat that would otherwise be empty. Ridesharing
also provides consumer financial savings.

Ridesharing tends to experience economies of scale: as more people use the service the
chances of finding a suitable carpool or vanpool increase significantly. Typical conditions for
ridesharing success include:

Corridors that offer a time and/or cost savings, such as avoiding bridge tolls or taking
advantage of carpool lanes.

Locations far enough from campus that driving is a hassle, and where transit service is
limited.

Locations with a significant concentration of San Francisco State University commuters
within close proximity of each other.

Commuters with regular schedules, particularly staff.

Taking all of these factors into account, priority locations for marketing ridesharing include:

Western Alameda County, where 11% of campus commuters live, including significant
concentrations of staff. So many commuters live in this area that there may be a strong
vanpool market. Additionally, carpoolers receive the benefit of toll free access to the Bay
Bridge.

Portions of San Francisco relatively far from campus, yet without direct transit service.
This would include much of southeastern San Francisco and many of the northernmost
portions of the city.

While there are few commuters coming from the North Bay, South Bay and far East Bay,
the commute distances are so long that there is a strong incentive to carpool

Measures that can increase participation and should be implemented include providing real-time
rideshare matching. This service could be provided on the Parking and Transportation
Department website or an existing service such as Ridespring.com could be utilized. An
expanded marketing program that will be implemented should include the promotion of the
formation of vanpools at specific locations where a concentration of university affiliates reside
along with the use of the commuter check program to reimburse vanpool charges with pre-tax
dollars. San Francisco State University should seek to use home address information from the
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University payroll system to map home address information geographically and do targeted
emails or mailings to employees in locations most suitable for carpooling and vanpooling.

Another potential program that will be explored within this 2-year timeframe is provision of
preferred parking for carpools and automatic enrollment of participants in the Guaranteed Ride
Home program. Free parking may also be provided for vanpools.

Marketing and Information on Alternative
Transportation Options
Strategy: The University will 1) update and revamp its website and print materials to provide
more comprehensive information on alternative transportation options to the University; and 2)
actively promote the commuter check program and Zipcar.

Description: A review of the existing Parking and Transportation Department website as well
as feedback provided from students and staff indicates that currently the University is not
providing the most comprehensive information on transportation alternatives.

Updates to the website are needed to reflect changes in programs and services. This should
include the following:

A direct and prominent link on the SF State homepage to a comprehensive list of
alternative transportation services, including the commuter check program and Zipcar.

Adding San Francisco or Bay Area bike route maps to the website can promote bicycle
commuting.

Adding shuttle maps, with route and stop locations, and shuttle schedules will reduce the
ambiguity of riding the shuttles.

A direct link to the 511 TakeTransit Trip Planner helps students new to transit identify the
best transit route to take from their point of origin to campus.

Locations where fare media and bus maps can be purchased.

Guaranteed Ride Home Program
Strategy: The University will seek grant funding to implement a Guaranteed Ride Home
program for all students, faculty and staff who are registered in the alternative mode program
(ridesharing, transit, biking, walking).

Description: The Guaranteed Ride Home (GRH) program is an important component of
ridesharing and alternative transportation programs as the fear of needing a ride home in case
of an emergency during the work day is one of the most cited obstacles to ridesharing or transit
use. Many commuters say they are much more likely to use alternative transportation if they
have access to an emergency ride home.

Guaranteed Ride Home programs provide an occasional subsidized ride to commuters who use
alternative modes, for example, if a bus rider must return home in an emergency, or a carpooler
must stay at work later than expected. GRH programs may use taxis, university vehicles or
rental cars. GRH trips may be free or they may require a modest co-payment. Commuters
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would be allowed a limited number of times they could use the program each year – perhaps
four. The cost of offering this service tends to be low because it is seldom actually used.
Persons who are planning on using alternative modes of transportation occasionally, part-time,
or full-time would register in the GRH program online or using a paper form.

Universal Transit Pass Program for Students
Strategy: The University will evaluate the feasibility and pursue options for funding a universal
student transit pass program.

Description: In recent years, growing numbers of transit agencies have partnered with
universities to provide universal transit passes. These passes typically provide unlimited rides
on local or regional transit providers for low monthly fees, often absorbed by the school and
students. The advantage of implementing a universal pass system, one where all students
participate, is that schools can negotiate a bulk rate with the transit providers.

Free transit passes are usually extremely effective means to reduce the number of car trips in
an area. By removing any cost barrier to using transit, including the need to search for spare
change for each trip, people become much more likely to take transit to school or for non-school
trips. Given the high percentage of students who already use public transit, and in particular
Muni, the cost of such a program will be significant and will require a student referendum and
administrative approval to increase their student fees to fund the program.

As stated in the MOU, the University will work with Muni and BART on establishing a Universal
Transit Pass program for students (undergraduate/graduate or both). The price of the passes
will be such that the entire program is revenue-neutral for the City and County of San Francisco.
Given the concentration of San Francisco State University commuters in San Francisco and
northern San Mateo Counties, the program would ideally include Muni, Samtrans and the BART
system between Embarcadero and Millbrae stations. If funding is not available for such a
program, including Muni only – or BART plus Muni within San Francisco, like the FastPass –
would be a valuable start. If additional money is available, and a fare instrument could be
found, including BART through northern Alameda County would be highly useful for the 11% of
commuters who live there.

The University will also work with student groups to gain support for the program, as a student
fee would need to be approved by a vote of students in order for the program to be
implemented.

In the April 2008 online travel survey, university affiliates were asked what was the most they
would be willing to pay for unlimited Muni access and unlimited BART access within San
Francisco.
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capacity constraints the University should identify funding to purchase or lease low-floor buses
which can transport approximately 35 seated persons for a 30 ft. bus and 40 persons seated in
a 40 ft. bus, or arrange for such vehicles through a turnkey shuttle operations contract. In
addition, low-floor vehicles enable a greater ease of access for persons with mobility limitations.
New transit vehicles should have multiple doors to ease boarding, since no fares are collected.

The University will evaluate the demand for shuttle service during summer months and the
related cost to determine whether the benefit—e.g., attracting more students during summer
session—warrants the added expense. During this time, the shuttle could operate at a lower
frequency and only during the peak commute times.

Currently, at the Daly City BART station the spacing of the San Francisco State University
shuttle stop and Muni Route 28 stop make it impossible for persons travelling to campus to see
both stops at the same time and take whichever bus/shuttle arrives first. Moreover, switching to
standard transit vehicles requires relocating the shuttle stop at the Daly City BART station, since
a portion of the current shuttle route under the BART guideway is too low to allow larger transit
vehicles. These problems could be addressed by shifting the San Francisco State University
shuttle stop to the area currently occupied by Muni Route 54, an arrangement already being
pursued by Muni, BART and San Francisco State University.

Shuttle stops currently lack clear route information, schedule information and poles indicating
the stops and should be updated to provide this information. Improvements can be made to the
Parking and Transportation Department website and materials could be printed to clearly
convey shuttle routes and schedules.

Bicycle Facilities
Strategy: The University will upgrade existing bicycle facilities by 1) Evaluating the hours of the
bike barn and expanding as needed 2) Installing additional bike racks, 3) Completing phase 1 of
the north-south bike path, and 4) Studying phase two of the north-south bike path, including a
field trip to UC Davis, Stanford, and UC Santa Barbara.

Description: The University has taken significant steps to encourage bicycling to campus. The
“Bicycle Working Group” has been established and meets about once every two months. It is
comprised of students, faculty, staff, administrators, University Police, SFMTA, and the Bicycle
Coalition. This group has been critically important in assisting with bike rack choice and
locations, as well as in coordinating all campus offices with any involvement with bikes or
related issues. The Bicycle Working Group has identified a number of locations throughout the
core campus where 100 bike racks should be installed. A grant from the Bay Area Air Quality
Management District will be used to fund this endeavor. The University will install approximately
100 bike racks during the first two years of the TDM plan, based on the recommendations of the
Bicycle Working Group.

Bike Barn hours should be evaluated and expanded as needed to further encourage bicycling to
campus, particularly extending the hours on Friday evening. At similar “bicycle stations” around
the country, 24-hour access is granted by card key to members. Video cameras and restricted
access minimize the risk of theft.

The campus master plan calls for a north-south bicycle/pedestrian route from Buckingham Way
to Holloway Avenue that would provide campus access to cyclists approaching campus from the
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north, while avoiding 19th Avenue. The University has submitted grant proposals seeking
funding for such projects, and is considering other funding sources. During the first two years of
the implementation period, San Francisco State University will complete Phase 1 of the north-
south bicycle path plan that will provide a path from Buckingham Way, near University Park
North to the campus core. The University has received $363,000 in funding from the Bay Area
Air Quality Management District’s Transportation Fund for Clean Air and completed construction
of Phase 1 of the north-south bicycle path in fall 2009.

The University will begin planning for phase two of the north-south bicycle plan that will continue
from the campus core, south to Cardenas Avenue. This planning phase will include trips to other
campuses such as UC Davis, Stanford, and UC Santa Barbara to meet with staff from the
various universities to discuss the work that has been done at their respective institution.

Pedestrian Facilities
Strategy: The University will 1) study the feasibility of adding accessible path connections at
either end of the phase 1 north-south bike path.

Description: The University will study the feasibility of adding accessible path connections at
either end of the phase 1 north-south bike path in order to create a continuous accessible
pedestrian pathway between University Park North and the campus core. The phase 1 bike
path, constructed in fall 2009, meets ADA accessibility standards.

Parking
Strategy: The University will 1) Explore the feasibility of implementing gradual daily and hourly
parking rate increases.

Description: The University will explore the feasibility of raising the hourly and daily parking
rates or removing the cap on daily parking and charging only by the hour. The additional
revenue generated would be set aside to invest in TDM measures that reduce parking demand
and/or to fund the construction of new perimeter parking structures that ultimately would replace
the central parking garage as called for in the long-term master plan vision.

In the future, the City will likely implement parking pricing for most of the free spaces around
campus, including the unregulated parking on Lake Merced Boulevard, Winston Drive, 19th

Avenue and Junipero Serra Boulevard. Since the majority of campus motorists currently park
free off campus, parking charges will create various implications that will also need to be
addressed:

Parking charges on the currently unregulated streets would likely increase demand for
parking in the surrounded permit-controlled residential neighborhoods. Currently, two
hours of free parking is allowed on these streets, providing convenient free parking for
students taking one- and two-hour classes. The City may wish to work with the
surrounding neighbors to reduce or eliminate the amount of free time available. To
accommodate residents’ guests, the City may want to provide more convenient guest
passes or install pay machines in the neighborhoods.
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Elimination of free parking around campus will increase the price at which commuter will
demand on-campus parking. As a result, the campus will need to be prepared to raise
its hourly parking charges in order to ensure adequate parking availability on campus.

Increasing the price of parking both on- and off-campus will likely result in a significant
decrease in rates of driving, and a corresponding increase in demand for other modes.
The University will likely need to be prepared to increase shuttle capacity to the Daly City
BART station, either through larger vehicles or more frequent service. The City will likely
need to identify funding for increasing frequency on the M and 28/28L, perhaps by
shifting some of the new revenue raised from parking charges on City streets to these
Muni lines.

3.2 Years Three through Five
Bicycle Facilities
Strategy: The University will continue to upgrade existing bicycle facilities by, 1) Completing the
north-south bike path, 2) Planning for an east-west bike path, 3) Installing bike racks, and 4)
Studying the feasibility of relocating the bike barn.

Description: During years three through five of the TDM plan, the University will complete the
north-south bike path that was initiated during years one and two. Once complete, the north-
south route will run from Buckingham Way through campus to Cardenas Avenue and will offer
an alternative to the 19th Avenue route proposed in the San Francisco Bicycle Plan. This path
would be open to the public at all times.

The University will plan for an east-west bike path that will go from the roundabout at Font
Boulevard via the west side of the Humanities and Student Services buildings to the south side
of Cox Stadium and will study the feasibility of relocating the bike barn facility to Holloway
Avenue or a more appropriate location.

The University will continue to evaluate potential locations for the installation of bike racks as
recommended by students, staff, and the Bicycle Working Group. Based on feedback from
these groups the University will install new bicycle racks as needed.

Pedestrian Facilities
Strategy: If feasible, the University will 1) construct accessible path connections at either end
of the phase 1 north-south bike path.

Description: If feasible, the University will construct accessible path connections at either end
of the phase 1 north-south bike path, thereby creating a continuous accessible pedestrian
pathway between University Park North and the campus core. The phase 1 bike path,
constructed in fall 2009, meets ADA accessibility standards.
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Shuttle Service
Strategy: The University will continue to improve shuttle service and amenities by 1)
Expanding shuttle service as necessary to meet demand, 2) Seeking to install GPS for real-time
tracking and NextBus arrivals, and 3) Installing NextBus arrival signs at campus locations.

Description: The University will continue to monitor ridership and occupancy on San Francisco
State University shuttles, in accordance with the monitoring plan outlined in Chapter 4, to
determine if the measures undertaken in years one and two adequately address capacity
constraints. If average PM peak period, peak direction passenger loading exceeds 85 percent of
combined seated and standing load capacity for service between the campus and the Daly City
BART station, the campus will increase shuttle frequency or other measures as deemed
appropriate, until this standard is met.

The University will continue to upgrade shuttle amenities and service by seeking to install GPS
devices on the shuttle buses to allow for real-time tracking and to install NextBus arrival signs at
key locations on campus. This may include shuttle stops, the 19th Ave and Holloway Ave
entrance, the bookstore, existing information screen in the Student Center, and cafes and other
dining areas. The NextBus arrival monitors will provide shuttle riders with a time for the next
arrival of the shuttle.

Transit
Strategy: The University will 1) seek student support for the implementation of a Universal
Transit Pass program for students, 2) Install real-time arrival signage, and 3) Seek to improve
transit stop amenities.

Description: Based on the planning work done during the first two years of the TDM plan, the
University will endeavor to implement a Universal Transit Pass program for students (under the
condition that the students have approved the additional fee and Muni and BART have
developed a workable arrangement for San Francisco State University).

The University will work with the City to install real-time arrival signage, such as NextBus, at
Muni stops on campus.

Currently, transit shelters located on campus offer little protection from rain and wind and no
route maps or schedules are posted to provide information on the bus services. For riders with
visual impairments, there is no tactile wayfinding and it may be difficult to locate the appropriate
bus stop pole when the area is crowded or when multiple bus lines pull into the stop together.
The University will seek to improve transit stop amenities by providing lighting, signage and
wayfinding, transit information, coverage from rain and wind where necessary.

Parking
Strategy: The University will seek to implement gradual rate increases.

Description: The University will seek to implement parking rate increases based on the study of
price sensitivity and potential revenue generation conducted during years one and two of the
TDM implementation plan.
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The pricing of parking will be adjusted such that the parking system is financially stable,
meaning that about 85 to 90 percent of spaces should be full at peak. Revenues generated from
the increase in parking rates will be placed in a fund to finance TDM improvements that reduce
parking demand and should include subsidies for the universal transit pass program and the
purchasing of new shuttle vehicles. Revenues also will be used to build future perimeter parking
facilities on campus.

3.3 Six or More Years
Bicycle Facilities
Strategy: The University will upgrade existing bicycle facilities by 1) offering a full service Bike
Barn if deemed feasible; 2) completing an east-west bike path and; 3) planning for a
pedestrian/bicycle bridge across the valley, 3) continuing to monitor bicycle parking utilization in
order to add new racks where needed.

Description: As the campus is developed, if private funding can be secured and an appropriate
location identified, the Bike Barn will be moved and replaced with a Bike Station. This facility will
provide attended bicycle parking with 24-hour access for registered members. It will also
provide bicycle repairs, air pumps, bicycle rentals, and transportation information.

The University will complete construction of the east-west bike path that will run from the
roundabout at Font Boulevard via the west side of the Humanities and Student Services
buildings to the south side of Cox Stadium.

The University will plan for the construction of a pedestrian/bicycle bridge across the valley
connecting University Park North and the campus core, as identified in the campus master plan.

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
Strategy: As feasible, the University will 1) increase daily and hourly parking fees, and
construct perimeter parking structures.

Description: As the campus grows and new buildings are constructed, the University will
assess the feasibility of building new parking structures. The location of these facilities may
include those outlined as preferred and alternative parking solutions in the Campus Master
Plan, including the new Creative Arts complex, new gym/recreation wellness center, Lot 25
parking site, and the University Conference Center.

3.4 Potential Future Mitigation Measures
The MOU between the City and County of San Francisco and the University outlines a number
of measures specifically addressing the Muni M line corridor and platform. The MOU states that
these two entities will work together to improve speed, reliability and frequency on the M line,
which will be partly achieved by track reconfigurations that will facilitate “short-run” service
between Holloway and Embarcadero Station.
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Chapter 4. Targets and Monitoring Plan
Targets and Thresholds
The University will work to achieve the following targets and will use these targets as
benchmarks throughout the monitoring process.

1. If average peak period, peak direction passenger loading exceeds 85 percent of
combined seated and standing load capacity for shuttle service between the campus
and the Daly City BART station, the campus will improve shuttle services during the
peak period(s) until this standard is met.

2. If the number of auto trips in the PM peak hour of 4:00 PM to 5:00 PM, are greater than
5 percent over the baseline of 1,173 vehicle trips, the University will conduct cordon
counts annually until such trips fall below the 5 percent above the baseline for two years
in a row.

3. If the number of peak period, 5:00 PM to 6:00 PM, transit trips on the M-line between the
campus and West Portal Station are greater than 5 percent above the baseline of 134
inbound trips and 273 outbound trips, the University will extend campus shuttle service
between the campus and West Portal Station during the peak period(s).

Monitoring Plan
San Francisco State University is committed to a comprehensive Monitoring Plan as part of the
TDM Plan and the MOU with the City and County of San Francisco.

The Monitoring Plan requires regular periodic evaluation to determine how the TDM Program is
achieving the goal of reducing the number of drive alone trips to the campus and minimizing
new peak hour trips.

The following measures are recommended to ensure compliance with the Monitoring Plan:

1. Cordon Surveys - Every three years or no later than the addition of each 1,000 students
in enrollment by headcount, the University will conduct a statistically significant cordon
survey of campus commuters during the PM peak hour. This survey will abide by the
guidelines set forth in the MOU between the University and City and County of San
Francisco.

a. If the cordon surveys show that the PM peak period auto trips to and from
campus are greater than 5 percent above the baseline, the cordon surveys will
be conducted annually until such trips fall below the 5 percent above the baseline
for two years in a row.

2. TDM Report to SFMTA - The University transportation liaison will report annually to
SFMTA regarding the status of the implementation of the TDM programs described in
the Transportation Demand Management Plan.

3. Shuttle Capacity - The University will monitor peak hour utilization of Campus Shuttle
buses.

4. The University will monitor peak period transit use on the M Line.



1

Wong, Phillip (ECN)

From: Aaron Goodman 
Sent: Sunday, February 12, 2017 10:15 AM
To: BRCAC (ECN); Keith Tanner
Subject: TDM Transit Demand Management Topic - @ Monday meeting at Balboa Reservoir 

CAC
Attachments: SFCTA_TDM_STUDY.pdf; SFCTA_TDM_SummaryDoc.pdf

Part 2 Attachments SFCTA TDM documents please ensure BRCAC receives all documents in advance of TDM 
discussion
if they have not already received.

AGoodman D11 



(//www.sfcta.org/sites/default/fi
les/content/Planning/19thAvenue
/investment study/19thPlan4 exi
sting.png)

19TH AVENUE TRANSIT STUDY | ABOUT 19TH

Click image to enlarge

BACKGROUND

The southern end of the 19th Avenue/State Route 1 corridor, from Sloat to Junipero Serra boulevards, serves 
heavy volumes of travelers, including pedestrians, bicyclists, the M-Ocean View light rail line, the 17, 28, 
28L, and 29 bus lines, and autos (see Study Area map to right). However, conditions for pedestrians and 
transit operations have been affected by steadily increasing regional through auto traffic and are in need of 
improvement.

The corridor is also home to one of the City's major activity centers, including the Parkmerced residential 
development, San Francisco State University (SF State), and the Stonestown Galleria mall. This center 
features a vibrant mix of uses and is anticipated to grow further, providing an opportunity to contemplate 
new multimodal transportation improvements.

Infill growth has recently been envisioned for Parkmerced. With it, the development has proposed multiple 
transportation projects, including realigning the M-Ocean View through the Parkmerced property and 
modifications to 19th Avenue's travel lanes and intersections. As other nearby sites, including SF State and 
Stonestown Galleria, continue to refine future plans, there is an opportunity to coordinate a broader look at 
potential transportation improvements for the corridor.

The San Francisco County Transportation Authority, with grant funds from the State Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans), is partnering with private and institutional landowners and other city agencies to 
study a broader set of improvements that would benefit the collective communities including and beyond 
Parkmerced and whose capital costs would require a collective effort to implement. The goals of these 
improvements are to:

• Increase transit service reliability, speed, and capacity
• Improve local-regional transit connections
• Reduce vehicle, pedestrian, and bicycle conflicts
• Manage local and through traffic movement along the 19th Avenue

STUDY PARTNERS AND FUNDING

◦ San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
◦ San Francisco Planning Department
◦ San Francisco Mayor's Office of Economic and Workforce Development
◦ California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)*
◦ Parkmerced Investor Properties (Parkmerced)*
◦ San Francisco State University (SF State)*
◦ General Growth Properties (owners of Stonestown Galleria)*

*Denotes funding partner

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

1. What is the 19th Avenue Transit Study, and why is it being undertaken?

2. Why consider a west-side alignment for the M-Line?

3. How does this study relate to other planning work happening in the corridor?

1. What is the 19th Avenue Transit Study, and why is it being undertaken?

HOME (//WWW.SFCTA.ORG/CONTENT/VIEW/1106) ABOUT (//WWW.SFCTA.ORG/CONTENT/VIEW/1146)

STUDY PRODUCTS/SCHEDULE (//WWW.SFCTA.ORG/CONTENT/VIEW/1147)

OUTREACH (//WWW.SFCTA.ORG/CONTENT/VIEW/1148) DOCUMENTS/LINKS (//WWW.SFCTA.ORG/CONTENT/VIEW/1149)

CONTACT US (MAILTO:INFO@SFCTA.ORG)



The 19th Avenue Transit Study will identify conceptual designs for transit and non-motorized projects in the 19th Avenue corridor that address existing 
needs and support potential future land use changes. Infill growth has recently been envisioned for the Parkmerced residential site in the southern part of 
the corridor. With it, the development has proposed multiple transportation projects, including realigning the M-Ocean View through the Parkmerced 
property and modifications to 19th Avenue's travel lanes and intersections. As other nearby sites, including SF State and Stonestown Galleria, continue to 
refine future plans, there is an opportunity to coordinate a broader look at potential transportation improvements for the corridor.

2. Why consider a west-side alignment for the M-Line?

The major activity generators for the M-Line—Parkmerced, SF State, and Stonestown Galleria—are all located on the west-side of 19th Avenue. Currently, 
M-Line passengers board/alight in the median of 19th Avenue, and cross three southbound travel lanes of 19th Avenue to access their origins/destinations. 
The Parkmerced Development Agreement calls for a realignment of the M-line segment south of Holloway through the Parkmerced site which would create a 
new at-grade crossing of the southbound 19th Avenue travel lanes. In order to mitigate the traffic impacts of that at-grade crossing, the Development 
Agreement calls for a widening of a segment of 19th Avenue. While a grade-separated crossing at Holloway would be cost-prohibitive, grade separated 
crossings in both the northern (near Sloat/19th) and southern parts of the corridor (near Randolph/Font/Junipero Serra) may be feasible as the benefits and 
costs could be shared among multiple stakeholders, would eliminate the need to widen 19th Avenue, and may complement additional land use changes 
envisioned.

BACK TO TOP

3. How does this study relate to other planning work happening in the corridor?

The Study team is aware of and will coordinate with related efforts that have occurred or are ongoing in the corridor including:

• Parkmerced Development Project. The Parkmerced development project (http://sfplanning.org/index.aspx?page=2529)—approved by 
the San Francisco Board of Supervisors in May 2011—is a comprehensive redesign of the approximately 116-acre site. The project will: increase 
residential density to encompass a total of 8,900 units on the site, provide new commercial and retail services, provide new transit facilities and 
improve existing utilities. The 19th Avenue Transit Study will develop transportation improvement concepts that may impact some of the 
transportation projects that are a part of the Development Agreement between Park Merced Investors and the City and County of San Francisco. After 
this Study develops and evaluates different improvement concepts, the City and County of San Francisco and Park Merced Investors may amend the 
agreement to alter the alignment of the segment of the M-line that runs through the Parkmerced property.

• 19th Avenue Corridor Study. The 19th Avenue Corridor Study (http://sfmea.sfplanning.org/19th Ave Corridor Study.pdf) was an 
effort completed by the Planning Department in 2010 at the request of the Board of Supervisors to analyze the collective impacts of potential future 
developments along and in the vicinity of 19th Avenue. That corridor study used a "four-tier" approach to analyze various sets of existing and proposed 
land use and transportation changes, including the Parkmerced proposal. Discussions during that study imagined a "Tier 5" set of transportation 
improvements, including operating the M-Line along the west side of 19th Avenue, as well as improving the transit connection to the Daly City BART 
Station. The 19th Avenue Transit Study aims to advance discussions on some of these Tier 5 ideas, while addressing a broader set of transportation 
improvements that would benefit the collective communities including and beyond Parkmerced, whose capital costs would require a collective effort 
to implement.

• Transportation Demand Management Partnership Project. The Transportation¬Authority is currently leading the Transportation Demand Management 

Partnership Project (//www.sfcta.org/content/view/861)in partnership with multiple City agencies and private institutional stakeholders 
to advance the way Transportation Demand Management (TDM) is planned and delivered in San Francisco. One of many activities being undertaken as a 
part of the TDM Partnership Project is the convening of working groups of employers and institutions, in order to develop and pilot TDM programs of 
mutual interest such as rideshare, parking management, shuttles coordination, transit pass marketing, and other strategies to decrease drive-alone 
travel. One such grouping includes the stakeholders of the 19th Avenue Transit Study (Parkmerced, SF State, Stonestown). The activities that will be 
implemented as a part of the TDM Partnership Project are of a shorter-term nature (within the next 2 years) than those to be developed under this 
Study (which could take 10 years or longer to implement).

• BART Daly City Station Access Improvement Plan. BART produced this plan (http://www.bart.gov/about/planning/dalycity.aspx) to 
identify potential transit access improvements to the Daly City BART Station. The plan identified alternatives for expanding the station's busy bus 
loading area and explored ways in which Muni's M-Ocean View light rail line could approach and serve the BART Station. The 19th Avenue Transit Study 
will use the BART plan's ideas as a basis for exploring the benefits and costs of bus and light rail improvements to the connection between 19th Avenue 
and the Daly City BART Station.

• Transit Effectiveness Project (TEP). The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency's TEP

(http://www.sfmta.com/cms/mtep/tepabout.htm) is a program to improve reliability and provide quicker trips for Muni customers. 
The TEP includes Travel Time Reduction Proposals for routes serving several major transit corridors, including the 28/28L service that runs along 19th 

Avenue (http://www.sfmta.com/cms/mtep/2819thaveproposals.htm). Changes to bus stop spacing, limited service stops, bus 
stop relocations, sidewalk extensions/bulbouts, right-turn lanes, and turn restrictions are being considered to improve transit travel time in the 
corridor. The 19th Avenue Transit Study is a longer-term effort than the TEP. The Study team will coordinate with the TEP team to ensure TEP 
conditions are reflected and considered in the development of Study design alternatives.

BACK TO TOP
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Seventh Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103

Tele: 415.701.4500

July 26, 2013

Seth Mallen, Executive Vice President
Stellar Management
345 Vidal Drive
San Francisco, California 94132

Re: Parkmerced Development – M Ocean View Realignment Notification

Dear Mr. Mallen:

This letter is to provide Parkmerced Investors, LLC (Parkmerced) with notice of the
Muni Realignment of the M Ocean View as required under Section 3.6.9 (b) of the
Development Agreement (DA) entered into between Parkmerced and the City and
County of San Francisco (City), and consented to by the San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency (SFMTA) Board of Directors.

Specially, Section 3.6.9 (b) of the DA states:

. . . On or before the date two (2) years from the Effective Date, the City acting
through the SFMTA shall provide notice to Developer indicating whether the City
intends to (i) seek approval from Non-City Responsible Agencies of the original
MUNI Realignment, (ii) seek approval of a modified MUNI Realignment to allow
for any proposed Tier 5 Improvements (the “Modified Tier 5 MUNI
Realignment”) or (iii) seek approval of both simultaneously from Non-City
Responsible Agencies (collectively, the “MUNI Project”) . . . Upon notice by the
City, the Parties agree to make good faith and commercially reasonable efforts to
seek approval of the MUNI Project from City and Non-City Responsible
Agencies, which shall include the diligent preparation and submittal by both
Parties of all permit applications and information required to obtain the necessary
permits or approvals.

Through this letter, SFMTA provides notice to Parkmerced that the City will seek
approval of both the Original Muni Realignment and a Modified Tier 5 Muni
Realignment.

The Original Muni Realignment is described in the Parkmerced Plan Documents.
The Original Realignment leaves the median of 19th Avenue at Holloway Avenue,
travels south through Parkmerced, and exits the development on Felix Avenue. The
alignment crosses Junipero Serra Boulevard at-grade to return to the existing M
Ocean View alignment on 19th Avenue.

The Modified Tier 5 Muni Realignment is currently being evaluated in the 19th
Avenue Transit Study (Study). The Study is led by the San Francisco County
Transportation Authority in partnership with SFMTA, the Office of Economic &
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Workforce Development, the San Francisco Planning Department, the California
Department of Transportation, Parkmerced, San Francisco State University, and
General Growth Properties.

The Study evaluated three Muni M Ocean View alignments north of Parkmerced
and three alignments south of Parkmerced. Of these initial proposed alignments,
two alignments, N-4, an aerial track on the west side of 19th Avenue, and S-3, an
aerial track along Brotherhood Way, are no longer being considered.

The Study continues to evaluate the following northern alignments:

N-1: Below-grade crossing to the west side of 19th Avenue at Eucalyptus Drive.
Continuing as a subway south on the west side of 19th Avenue. The southbound
track comes up to grade after Buckingham Way. The northbound track comes
up to grade after Holloway Avenue.

N-2: Below-grade crossing to the west side of 19th Avenue at Eucalyptus Drive.
Continuing as a subway south on the west side of 19th Avenue. The tracks come
up to grade sooner than the N1 realignment: southbound before Winston Drive;
northbound before Buckingham Way.

And the following southern alignments:

S-1: Below-grade crossing from Felix Avenue underneath Junipero Serra
Boulevard to 19th Avenue. Continuing south on 19th Avenue at grade on the
existing M Ocean View alignment.

S-2: Aerial crossing from Font Boulevard across Junipero Serra Boulevard to
Randolph Street. Continuing east on Randolph Street at grade on the existing
M Ocean View alignment.

The Modified Tier 5 Muni Realignment will continue to be evaluated and refined
through the completion of the Study in early Spring of 2014. The City is also
starting to plan for the next phase of work to advance the project, assisted through
receipt of a planning grant. This funding will support advancing project
development, including preparation of a Project Study Report as required by the
California Department of Transportation for projects affecting the state-owned
right-of-way.

SFMTA bases the decision to continue to pursue both options, the Original Muni
Realignment and a Modified Tier 5 Muni Realignment, on the SFMTA’s
participation in the 19th Avenue Transit Study, review of proposed realignments by
SFMTA Construction, Safety, Transit Service Planning, Livable Streets, and Traffic
Engineering staff, and the review on July 25, 2013 and endorsement of the
realignments by the Transportation Advisory Staff Committee.
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SFMTA looks forward to continuing to work cooperatively with Parkmerced on the
Muni Realignment. Please do not hesitate to contact me (ed.reiskin@sfmta.com,
701-4720) or Peter Albert of my staff (peter.albert@sfmta.com, 701-4328) if you
have any questions regarding this letter or the status of the proposed Muni
Realignment.

Sincerely,

Edward D. Reiskin
Director of Transportation

cc: Tamsen Drew, OEWD
Charles Sullivan, City Attorney’s Office
Peter Albert, SFMTA
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Wong, Phillip (ECN)

From: Aaron Goodman 
Sent: Sunday, February 12, 2017 10:23 AM
To: BRCAC (ECN); Keith Tanner
Subject: TDM Transit Demand Management Topic - @ Monday meeting at Balboa Reservoir 

CAC
Attachments: Parkmercec_transit_MAP.pdf

Lastly please see the map on the Parkmerced TDM Transportation improvements proposed.  

The issue is 100% similar in the distance to the Daly City station from SFSU-CSU and the proposed dog-leg vs. 
direct connection. The need to see other similar projects (done by similar consultants) and be able to draft and 
develop an INDEPENDENT solution and supportive reasoning is critical to transit infrastructure proposed and 
built. TDM deals too much with car-share, shuttle services, pedestrian and bike, but not enough in the hard-
scale-building of infrastructure solutions up front and not in 15-20 years down the road.  

It should be noted some of this planning is from 2011 (5 years passing) and SFSU-CSU has only done limited 
improved TDM work while continuing build out and capacity issues like parking are ignored.  

The developer's consultants (Nelson Nygaard) and other city agencies developed a proposal, that negates direct 
and immediate planning to extend the M-Line to Daly City BART with a station re-design.

BPRCAC and BPSCAC both have a succinct need to develop a solid plan and infrastructure response to these 
development proposals that benefit the existing communities, and students as a priority.  

NOT JUST THE DEVELOPERS PLANS!!!!

So please look carefully at the similarities, in terms of joint impacts, cumulative growth, and the need to ensure 
that future plans (Like the Geneva Harney) and other lines are considered in your TDM decision making and 
resolutions if any drafted.

Thank you for forwarding to the BPRCAC 

A.Goodman D11 

The Parkmerced Transit plan is too large to send via email, so please see the link below.  

Parkmerced Project | Planning Department
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Wong, Phillip (ECN)

From:
Sent: Monday, February 13, 2017 11:36 AM
To: Lisa Spinali; Brigitte Davila; Kate Favetti; Michael Ahrens; Maria Picar; Robert 

Muehlbauer; Howard Chung; Rebecca Lee; Jonathan Winston; Christine Godinez
Cc: BRCAC (ECN)
Subject: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF

Dear Committee Members, 
At tonight’s Balboa Reservoir CAC meeting  http://sf-planning.org/balboa-reservoir-cac-meeting-schedule will be 
previewing draft findings of the TDM (Transportation Demand Management) framework.  
  
The problems (some of them) for City College are that this TDM framework is based on insufficient data regarding 
parking usage at CCSF’s Ocean Campus. 
  
San Francisco Planning department has posted online their answer to a question about the parking surveys from the 
last CAC meeting.  
Question (paraphrased by the City team): Why wasn’t the survey of City College parking lots done at a time when 
school was in session? 
The City’s answer might seem to be complete and reasonable, however the problem lies in the actual data they are 
quoting: 
http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/public-
sites/balboareservoir/balboareservoir CAC Presentation-12122016 FINAL.pdf 
  
Planning stated that their parking survey, which was done on May 10 and 11, 2016 represented average parking 
usage. But this data was collected the week before finals when the school’s attendance is as small as it will be all 
semester. 
  
Some data is missing completely: TDM surveyed the parking lot usage at night from 10:00PM to 12:30AM after all 
classes at the school are over. This the only data collected in the evening and it completely omits parking for night 
students—important when considering the CAC’s discussions of potential parking facilities “shared” between CCSF 
and future residents of the proposed housing in Balboa Parking lot. 
  
The claim that data represented the TDM report represents “peak” parking is not accurate—because at the point in 
the semester when TDM’s data was collected, the week before finals, “peak” usage does not occur—instead “peak” 
usage truly happens at least three months earlier in the semester.  
  
The data in the Nelson/Nygaard report is insufficient in regards to City College. 
  
Nelson/Nygaard study: http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/public-
sites/balboareservoir/Nelson Nygaard Balboa TDM-Existing Conditions Memo.pdf 
Page 48—parking summary 
Page 71—Appendix A, parking surveys 
 
Please demand that data that truly reflects the current and especially the peak usage of City College is completed 
before any TDM planning continues. 
Thank you, 
Christine Hanson 
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Wong, Phillip (ECN)

From: Aaron Goodman 
Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2017 10:42 AM
To: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC); BRCAC (ECN); Exline, Susan (CPC)
Cc: jtumlin@nelsonnygaard.com; Susan Lamb; Tim Chan
Subject: Discussion BRCAC - in regards to big picture moves....

BPRCAC / Jeremey / Sue and Jeff Tumlin 

Busy discussion last night, but wanted to be sure it was understood my comments and the concerns of the 
BPSCAC

a) shuttle services to BPS will be MORE congested due to BRT program as proposed to be implemented along 
Geneva Harney to BPS.
b) the BPS does not have the capacity nor maneuverability for large buses due to already heavily congested 
areas from Geneva/Mission up to Balboa and over  to Ocean and San Jose due to the on/off ramps.  
c) The new opened/proposed D11 Garden over on Geneva near San Jose should be seen as "band-width" for the 
future needed changes to link BRT/LRV lines to Balboa Park Station 
d) a stronger concept that looks at integration and crossing of Geneva at San Jose of the M-extension from 
Parkmerced to provide a link/loop in systems (J / M /K / T future LRV line) to BPS is needed.
e) There is a possible below/grade, or above grade method of crossing Geneva and that needs to be determined 
(best method, cost, route, for future linkage and turn-back or looping of systems. (Ex: taking a J and sending it 
out on the M-Line or a K train out to the Geneva/Harney route to Caltrains.
f) think of the BPS yards, and storage areas diagonal from each other and imagine a (4-chamber) transit system 
pumping the trains in 4 directions vs. just dead -ends...)
g) Growth will impact these areas, and corridors along the routes can be up-zoned if the designs help to 
transform the area, with retail/office and housing
h) above and below ground options may be needed due to topography... So determining the costs and simplicity 
of routing is key.
i) increased access to the caltrains and shopping at Candlestick, along with the business areas of brisbane's 
development may also help link jobs and housing closer along east-west transit systems.  
j) A simple "highline" park/pedestrian crossing from a parking structure on the east side of CCSF could provide 
desperately needed housing above, and parking below (teach housing on the top, access from freeway below, 
and parking available direct off the freeway, with parking managed for teachers, transit workers, students, and 
needed BART and MUNI parking spaces for further construction at BPS station for future major projects. Fees 
could help CCSF with construction costs long-term.  
k) I pointed the SFSU TDM due to the lacking solutions that link to Daly City BART, and no real "teeth" to the 
document (19th Ave Transit Study, and Developer Agreements) leaving us in D7 with more traffic, parking and 
transit problems with a development steering (3) proposed stops into Parkmerced while SFSU-CSU did not do 
enough to pay into the transit solutions... Nelson Nygaard was the transit consultant on SFSU-CSU and 
Parkmerced I believe, so there is some concerns about real efforts at outside the box solutions on transit, and if 
the proposals did enough infrastructure proposal wise. Peter Albert (SFMTA) was a voice on the further 
extension to Daly City, and Liz Brisson as well talked some but did not push enough on the Tier-5 future 
extension which costs the most... 
l) Lick Wilmerding (Bike Path) and congestion is a serious hazard, and the funnel and speeds are the danger 
eastbound and westbound, with Lick Wilmerdings upcoming project and need to widen the area for drop-off 
and not parking its crucial to have a discussion between agencies on the pathway adjacent to the school down to 
the BART station and entry.
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j) Infrastructure was mentioned but we have not seen any concepts that may drive the energy and water issues 
for the site (BPR) with the RFP we hope to see concepts that can envision not just block housing but Open 
Space with housing and infrastructure integrated... The site should not just be a parking garage below 
(Parkmerced) and should have water-retention and energy creation as a solution.

Unlocking Transit Funding, and ensuring we plan for future density and development, requires a bigger step 
forward, and getting a project and proposal vetted and developed to garner interest.

The City College Parking Structure and off-ramp would directly pull traffic OFF of ocean ave. Solve some of 
the parking issues for BPR and CCSF provide some future funding to the pedestrian bridge and overpass needed 
to access BPS BART. and create a more positive pedestrian bridge/parkway to campus over Ocean Ave and the 
I-280 interchange...

As noted prior a plinth design with stacker units or vertical parking below the plinth could solve a lot of issues 
(tennis courts above, fields above, and even teacher housing and more park-like commons for campus 
amennities could poke up and down in the plinth providing both views, niches for campus needs, and lower 
floors for parking and essential services and systems (water collection  etc!)  

The concept alone could be a VERY positive new design concept for the eastern edge of the campus and its 
connection to BART, and I highly reccomend the CCSF Facilities and BART reps to link up on this.

Sorry for the longer email but wanted to be sure all were informed on the issues, and it can be included in the 
comments for the meeting as the 2 minutes alloted did not provide time to ask really the questions on the 
grouped presentation which was excessively long and limited public comment time from 3-2 minutes (reminder 
planning commission does it on highly contentious issues, but this was a FEEDBACK session on TDM, 
therefore comments need to be included and time should not have been reduced...no matter how tired or the 
time constraints....)  

Sincerely

Aaron Goodman  
D11
BPSCAC
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Wong, Phillip (ECN)

From: Aaron Goodman 
Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2017 10:42 PM
To: BRCAC (ECN); Keith Tanner; Boomer, Roberta (MTA)
Subject: Another Development Site (East Side of BPS) - for info. to both CAC's..... and the 

SFCTA/SFMTA

Brings developments in the D11 area quickly up to 6 large new developments in the area adjacent to the BPS 
area plan eastern side but just outside of the lines delineating the BPS Area Plan.... 

SocketSite™ | Plans and Potential for Building up Balboa Park SocketSite™ | Plans and Potential for Building 
up Balboa Park Plans to raze the warehouse and (National) Trophy (Company) building at 350-352 Ocean 
Avenue are in the works. A...



From: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC)
To: Lesk, Emily (ECN); BRCAC (ECN)
Cc: Shanahan, Thomas (ECN)
Subject: RE: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF
Date: Monday, March 13, 2017 11:44:53 AM

Sorry I missed the conference call time.. I’m available now if you need
 

From: Lesk, Emily (ECN) 
Sent: Monday, March 13, 2017 11:17 AM
To: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC); BRCAC (ECN)
Subject: RE: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF

I think this is great. To avoid getting into a debate about it with Christine tonight, what about waiting
until later in the week to send it, but letting her know that it is forthcoming when you see her
tonight?
 
Emily Lesk
Direct: (415) 554-6162
Email: emily.lesk@sfgov.org
 

From: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC) 
Sent: Monday, March 13, 2017 11:11 AM
To: BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org>
Cc: Lesk, Emily (ECN) <emily.lesk@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF

Phillip,
 
I would defer to Emily’s sense of the evening’s agenda as to whether we should email the text below
now (and prompt a further response) or just articulate something in this order at the meeting
tonight.
 
 
 
 
We appreciate Ms. Hanson’s continued involvement in the public process.
 
In order to work towards better management of transportation demand and parking, City College
and the City need a “framework” or conceptual place from which to start. The TDM Framework
provides that: it’s a place to start.
 
It’s fair to say that there can always be more data to collect. And nothing about what we have today
implies that data collection is over. In fact, the key to implementing TDM and parking management is
ongoing monitoring. For now, the TDM provides a path to move forward, is based on best practices,
and is at a level of conceptual planning that does not require additional data collection at this time.
 



We appreciate Ms. Hanson’s comments and wanted to respond to similar concerns we heard last
Spring. This is why additional data was collected in the fall, including City College’s own hour by hour
collection during what was considered the period of highest parking demand: registration period. In
addition to the August 2016 City College parking data, the TDM Framework considers the
aforementioned data collected in May 2016 during classes, neighborhood parking data in September
2016 and a number of other conditions that affect parking demand. This is in addition to video
recordings and parking data collected in 2015 as part of AECOM’s existing conditions study. However
Nelson Nygaard opted to collect more and more recent data than what the 2015 existing conditions
study contained. With respect to the night time data collected, it was used as a point of comparison
to daytime usage and parallels the collection of baseline, night-time data from the neighborhoods.
For now, the baseline daytime, night-time and the period of peak demand (August 2016) provide a
range or bookends of existing conditions.
 
For the level of detail in the TDM Framework, the collected body of data is sufficient, includes City
College’s peak period data, and sets a template for future data collection. The framework is not a
definitive plan and before City College or the Reservoir flesh out any specific parking projects,
proposals or shared parking arrangements, more analysis will likely be needed. However, specific
proposals or projects are not part of the TDM Framework. For now, the TDM Framework provides a
series of consultant recommendations as a place to start working together.
 
 
 
 
 
 

From: BRCAC (ECN) 
Sent: Monday, March 13, 2017 9:22 AM
To: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC)
Cc: Lesk, Emily (ECN)
Subject: RE: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF

Thanks, Jeremy and Emily. I just want to be able to send Christine something and not be accused of
ignoring her. Can I send her something along the lines of, Jeremy is going to address that tonight?
 
Phillip
 
--

P h i l l i p  C .  W o n g
Project Manager, Office of Economic and Workforce Development
City Hall, Room 448, SF, CA 94102-4653
Office: (415) 554-6512
Website: http://OEWD.org/Development
 

From: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC) 
Sent: Monday, March 13, 2017 8:55 AM



To: BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org>
Cc: Lesk, Emily (ECN) <emily.lesk@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF

I was planning to address that tonight and can follow up if need be

// Sent from the field //

JEREMY SHAW | Planner/Urban Designer | SF PLANNING | 415.575.9135

On Mar 12, 2017, at 11:12 AM, BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org> wrote:

Hi Jeremy,

Are you able to respond to this?

Thank you,
Phillip

--
Phillip C. Wong
Project Manager, Office of Economic and Workforce Development
City Hall, Room 448, SF, CA 94102-4653
Office: (415) 554-6512
Website: http://OEWD.org/Development

-----Original Message-----
From:
[mailto: net]
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 6:07 PM
To: BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF

Philip,
Thank you. Does this also mean that there are plans for data to be gathered
that truly reflects the current parking usage at City College?
Chris Hanson

--------------------------------------------
On Thu, 3/9/17, BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org> wrote:

Subject: RE: the need for better TDM Data for CCSF
To:
Date: Thursday, March 9, 2017, 3:26 PM



Hi Christine,

Thank you for the email.
It will be shared with the members of the CAC  and be made a part of the
public record.

Best regards,
Phillip

--
Phillip C.
Wong
Project Manager, Office of Economic and  Workforce Development  City
Hall, Room 448,  SF, CA 94102-4653
Office: (415) 554-6512
Website: http://OEWD.org/Development<http://oewd.org/Development>

From:

Sent: Monday, February 13, 2017 11:36 AM
To: Lisa Spinali  Brigitte Davila

;  Kate Favetti ;
 Michael Ahrens ;  Maria Picar

;  Robert Muehlbauer
;  Howard Chung

 Rebecca Lee ;  Jonathan Winston
;  Christine Godinez

Cc: BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org>
Subject: the need for better TDM Data for  CCSF

Dear Committee
Members,
At tonight’s Balboa Reservoir CAC
meeting http://sf-planning.org/balboa-reservoir-cac-meeting-schedule
will be previewing draft findings of the TDM  (Transportation Demand
Management) framework.

The problems (some of them)
for City College are that this TDM framework is based on  insufficient
data regarding parking usage at CCSF’s Ocean  Campus.

San Francisco
Planning department has posted online their answer to a  question about
the parking surveys from the last CAC  meeting.
Question (paraphrased by the City
team): Why wasn’t the survey of City College parking lots  done at a time
when school was in session?
The City’s answer might seem to be complete  and reasonable, however
the problem lies in the actual data  they are quoting:



http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-
city/public-sites/balboareservoir/balboareservoir_CAC_Presentation-
12122016_FINAL.pdf

Planning stated that their
parking survey, which was done on May 10 and 11, 2016  represented
average parking usage. But this data was  collected the week before finals
when the school’s  attendance is as small as it will be all semester.

Some data is missing
completely: TDM surveyed the parking lot usage at night from  10:00PM
to 12:30AM after all classes at the school are over.
This the only data collected in the evening and it  completely omits
parking for night students—important when  considering the CAC’s
discussions of potential parking  facilities “shared” between CCSF and
future residents of  the proposed housing in Balboa Parking lot.

The claim that data
represented the TDM report represents “peak” parking is  not accurate—
because at the point in the semester when  TDM’s data was collected, the
week before finals,  “peak” usage does not occur—instead “peak” usage
 truly happens at least three months earlier in the  semester.

The data in the
Nelson/Nygaard report is insufficient in regards to City  College.

Nelson/Nygaard
study: http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-
city/public-sites/balboareservoir/Nelson_Nygaard_Balboa_TDM-
Existing_Conditions_Memo.pdf
Page 48—parking summary
Page
71—Appendix A, parking surveys

Please demand that data that truly reflects the  current and especially the
peak usage of City College is  completed before any TDM planning
continues.
Thank you,
Christine Hanson



From: Aaron Goodman
To: Tanner, Keith; BRCAC (ECN)
Subject: Rent hike prompts CCSF to close Fort Mason art campus - by m_barba - The San Francisco Examiner
Date: Monday, March 13, 2017 5:23:58 PM

Important as it affects ocean ave and is about CCSF impacts on transit

http://www.sfexaminer.com/rent-hike-prompts-ccsf-close-fort-mason-art-campus/

Sent from my iPhone



From: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC)
To: Maurice Rivers 
Cc: Lesk, Emily (ECN); BRCAC (ECN)
Subject: FW: Balboa Reservoir CAC - Next Meeting 3/13/17, RFQ Update and Maurice Rivers
Date: Monday, March 13, 2017 3:08:36 PM

Maurice,
 
In case you’re not already signed up, here was last week’s newsletter. You can subscribe to the newsletter on the
general Reservoir page here and “alerts” to the CAC page here
 
Jeremy
 
 
JEREMY SHAW | Planner/Urban Designer | SF PLANNING | 415.575.9135
 
 
 
 

From: San Francisco Planning Department [mailto:sfplanning@public.govdelivery.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 5:01 PM
To: Shaw, Jeremy (CPC)
Subject: Balboa Reservoir CAC - Next Meeting 3/13/17, RFQ Update and Maurice Rivers

Next meeting is Monday, March 13, Balboa Reservoir RFQ results are out, and Maurice Rivers joins the CAC

Banner-Planning-OEWD-PUC

Greetings Members of the Balboa community,

We are writing to provide you with a few brief updates on the Balboa Reservoir.

CAC MEETING: NEXT MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2017

The next CAC meeting date has been advanced to Monday, March 13, 2017 at
the normal time and location: 6:15pm at City College MUB Room 140. We will
focus on expanding community outreach to ensure broad and inclusive attendance
at a future meeting for prospective developers (see above) to present their visions
for the Balboa Reservoir. The meeting's agenda is posted online at http://sf-
planning.org/brcac. We encourage your input on the question of broad, inclusive
community engagement. In preparation for Monday, please consider the
following questions:

Which groups or communities should we make sure to engage?
How can we ensure that they are informed and able to
participate?



ANNOUNCING THE BALBOA RESERVOIR RFQ RESULTS

An evaluation panel made up of City staff from SFPUC, OEWD, the Planning
Department, SFMTA, and MOHCD, as well as representatives of the Balboa
Reservoir Community Advisory Committee and City College of San Francisco,
have concluded the Balboa Reservoir RFQ process. We were delighted to receive
nine responses from a diverse and thoughtful group of potential partners. The
following three RFQ respondent teams (listed alphabetically) received the three
highest scores and are invited to submit development proposals:

AvalonBay Communities and BRIDGE Housing with Mission Housing,
Pacific Union Development Company, and Habitat for Humanity of
Greater San Francisco
Emerald Fund and Mercy Housing
Related Companies with Sares Regis Group of Northern California,
Curtis Development, and Tenderloin Neighborhood Development
Corporation

The next step is for these development teams to submit more detailed
development proposals for Balboa Reservoir. The Request for Proposals (RFP)
document outlining the proposal process is now posted on the Balboa Reservoir
Development Opportunity website, http://sfwater.org/balboa. These proposals
will be due in June, at which point they will be presented publicly and receive
community feedback.

WELCOME MAURICE RIVERS

We are excited to welcome Supervisor Yee’s newest appointee to the CAC,
Maurice Rivers. Maurice lives in the Oceanview-Merced Heights-Ingleside
(OMI) and is a Board Member of the OMI Cultural Participation Project, Ocean
Avenue Association, and the OMI Community Collaborative. He is a graduate of
City College of San Francisco and the owner of the Umbrella Tree, a small
business consultancy for office management and spatial organization. Maurice is
also the Neighborhood Lead for Nextdoor Ingleside, a neighborhood blog that
connects neighbors and businesses in the OMI. He will be filling the seat
previously held by Maria Picar. Welcome Maurice!

We look forward to seeing you Monday!

: (415) 575-9010
Para información en Español llamar al: (415) 575-9010
Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa: (415) 575-9121

Please Do Not Reply to this automated email.

QUESTIONS? Contact us or email planningnews@sfgov.org
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BALBOA RESERVOIR COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
CITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

 
 

COMMENT RECEIVED FROM 
ABSENT BRCAC MEMBERS 

 
Period: 2/14/17 – 3/13/17

 
 



March 8, 2017 
 
TO:  Ms. Lisa Spinali, Chair, BRCAC 
 
FROM: Mike Ahrens, Westwood Park BRCAC Appointee 
 
Re:  Presentation – March 13, 2013 BRCAC Meeting  
 
At a time when we all agreed that we would not have a March meeting I set a trip to 
Washington DC, and I will be in the air at the time of the newly scheduled 
meeting.  With penalties for rescheduling flights I could not either call in for this meeting 
or be present.  The Chair of the CAC has therefore agreed to read my statement on 
some of the points I would like to make as a CAC member about the topic of the March 
13 meeting.  That topic is published to be "Outreach and Public review of the 
Developer." 
 
I also want to thank the Chair of the CAC for talking to me before the March 13 CAC 
meeting concerning discussions that may take place on this topic at that meeting.  As I 
understand it, the City may suggest that we have a public meeting where all members 
of the public, including the CAC members, will be able to make comments to the 
developer and ask the developer questions about their response to the Requests for 
Proposal.  I understand that it is likely that there will be three developers selected for 
this process and the meeting most likely will take place in June.  During my first 
conversation with the Chair of the CAC there was no certainty as to whether there 
would be a subsequent meeting of the CAC to discuss the responses to the RFP and 
the chair said the matter may simply then be presented to the Evaluation Committee for 
a final decision.  I objected saying we urgently need a meeting on public notice of the 
CAC and it should be some time after the meeting with the developers to give everyone 
time to analyze and research the responses of the developers.  In my second 
conversation with the Chair she said there will be a CAC meeting but said it may be the 
same day we talk to the developers when matters are fresh in our minds.  I again urged 
that the CAC meeting be some time after our meeting with the developers to give us 
time to analyze their responses. 
 
I strongly feel that the CAC should have at least a few days to digest the meeting with 
the three developers and then have a formal meeting on a published date after the 
meeting with the developers.  The Administrative Code, Section 5.17-2(e) provides that 
"the purpose of the CAC is to provide a community voice and function as a central 
clearinghouse for community input in the process as the city considers its options for 
development of the site."  Moreover, at the Inaugural Meeting of the CAC held on 
August 26, 2015, the City handed out a timeline that included CAC meetings to do two 
things:  Role #1 was cited as advising the City on RFP Parameters.  Role #2 was cited 
at a later date to do the following:  "Advising on Development Program and 
Design."  While the Chair of the CAC is a sitting member of the Evaluation Committee, 
the only way that the entire CAC can fulfill its responsibilities under "Role #2" is to meet 
after its members have met the three developers and then give comments to our Chair 
to be hopefully followed as the advice of the CAC.  Otherwise the Chair will sit on the 
Evaluation Committee with no guidance from the CAC. 
 



The Parameters that we approved were sent to the RFQ respondent with a letter dated 
September 9, 2016 from the CAC Chair.  That letter was a crucial part of the 
Parameters that the CAC approved.  It contained a number of factors that we wanted 
the developer to address, including transportation solutions and parking solutions for the 
displaced parking.  I understand the CCSF trustees are now in the final stages of 
approving the Arts Center for the parking lot, and this even heightens the need to have 
the developer address these solutions.  The CAC needs to discuss the responses of the 
developers to these priorities addressed in the September 9, 2016 letter to the RFQ 
respondents.  And, due to the importance of this CAC meeting we need some time after 
our meeting with the Developers to research our comments based on their answers. 
 
At our meeting at Riordan High School on November 14, 2016, many of us made clear 
our views that many of these issues need to be addressed by the CAC before a 
developer is selected.  I agree with the comments of Robert Muehlbauer on that date 
contained in the minutes that the work we are doing has not even started.  As he stated 
at that time, we have a long list of wants in terms of what we want to see, but "it’s a very 
abstract notion of what that's going to look like when we actually have a proposal in 
front of us."  As he said then we have to look at how all these development parameters 
fit in a real deal that is put before us. 
 
It is the CAC, and not the Evaluation Committee, that is tasked by the Administrative 
Code on being the voice of the Community.  I therefore think that after this meeting with 
the three developers we need a subsequent official meeting of the CAC that is noticed 
fully to the public.  At that public meeting the CAC can fulfill the most important function 
for which it was formed:  To listen to public comment about the meeting with the 
developers, the response to the RFP, and then have the CAC members themselves 
discuss the matter and give guidance to its Chair who sits on the Evaluation Committee 
and should be advancing our comments and concerns as the voice of the Community. 
 
Cc:  Supervisor Norman Yee 
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